Agenda January 10, 2020 10:00 AM

City of Leesburg

City Hall, 107 N Walnut Avenue, Leesburg, GA 31763
229-759-6465

City Council members City Staff

Richard Bush, Acting Mayor Bob Alexander, City Manager
Rufus Sherman, Mayor Pro Tem Bert Gregory, City Attorney
Judy Powell Bob Wilson

Jason Renfroe

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
January 7, 2020

3. PUBLIC HEARING

4. NEW BUSINESS
(A) Consideration of 2020 CDBG Applicants & Amended Service Delivery Strategy.
(B) Consideration of Consulting Agreement with ULTRA STRATEGIES, LLC

5. CITY MANAGER’S MATTERS

6. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS

2. GOVERNMENTAL BOARDS/AUTHORITIES

8. COUNCIL MEMBER’S MATTER

9. OLD BUSINESS

10. CITY ATTORNEY’S MATTERS

11.  EXECUTIVE SESSION

12.  PUBLIC FORUM

13. ANNOUCEMENTS
Next Scheduled Meeting is February 4, 2020
14. ADJOURNMENT

Agenda May Change Without Notice




Minutes

January 7, 2020 6:00PM

City of Leesburg

City Hall, 107 N Walnut Avenue, Leesburg, GA 31763
229-759-6465

City Councilmembers City Staff
Richard Bush, Acting Mayor Bob Alexander, City Manager
Rufus Sherman, Mayor Pro Tem Bert Gregory, City Attorney
Bob Wilson Judy Powell
Jason Renfroe

1. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Bush called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM and lead the pledge. Councilmember Wilson lead the
Prayer. The City Manager and City Attorney were present. All the Councilmembers were present.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mayor Bush asked for a motion to approve the minutes from December 3, 2019. Councilmember
Sherman made a Motion to approve the minutes. Councilmember Wilson seconded the motion. The vote
was unanimous.

PUBLIC HEARING

NEW BUSINESS

(A) Meredith Lipson, CPA with Mauldin & Jenkins presented the Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis
Financial & Compliance Audit Summary June 30, 2019. Also presented was the City of Leesburg,
Georgia Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019. Ms. Lipson finished her
presentation by saying the City of Leesburg is in good financial shape.

(B) City Manager Bob Alexander discussed the Applications for Beer and Wine License for year 2020.
Chief Prokesh has reviewed the applicants and recommended approval. Councilmember Wilson
made a motion to approve the Beer and Wine Licenses. Councilmember Sherman seconded the
motion. The vote was unanimous.

(C) The City Manager presented the recommendation for Qualifying Fees for Council and Mayor $54.00
and $108.00 respectively. Councilmember Powell made a motion to approve the recommended
Qualifying Fees for Council and Mayor. Councilmember Renfroe seconded the motion. The vote was
unanimous.

(D) A presentation of the School Connectivity Study by Taylor Stukes with Engineering Consultant GCA
Inc. indicated recommendations for sidewalks, crosswalks, safety flashers, road and intersection
designs throughout the City of Leesburg. He indicated some of these projects should be eligible for
GDOT funding. No action was taken.

(E) The former State Representative Ed Rynders was present to offer his assistance to the City of
Leesburg in the form a contract to advise and consult the City of Leesburg on matters of process and
procedures relating to governmental and political affairs for one year. Councilmember Powell made a
motion to table this issue until we have a Special Called Meeting January 10, 2020 at 10:00 AM.
Councilmember Wilson seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous.

(F) Finance Manager Cheryl Allison discussed the renewal of the GMA Workers® Compensation Self-
Insurance Fund contract year 2020. The new contract was for $37,884. She pointed out there was an
estimated reduction of $1,400 from last years contract. There was no objection from the Council to
move forward with the renewal contract.

CITY MANAGER’S MATTERS,




Minutes January 7, 2020 6:00PM

(A) Financial Report
The City Manager discussed the Financial Report of the General Fund and the Water & Sewer Fund
and indicated that both funds are within budget for the year.

6. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS

(A) Police Report

(B) Public Works Report

(C) Water and Sewer Report

7 GOVERNMENTAL BOARDS/AUTHORITIES

8. COUNCIL MEMBER’S MATTER

9. OLD BUSINESS

10. CITY ATTORNEY’S MATTERS

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION

12. PUBLIC FORUM

13.  ANNOUCEMENTS

Special Called Meeting is Friday January 10, 2020 at 10:00 AM

14. ADJOURNMENT
Councilmember Sherman made a motion to adjourn. Councilmember Renfroe seconded the motion.
The vote was unanimous.




Lee County F!annfngl Zoning & Er_wgineerigg Department

Rozanne Braswell, AICP, CFM Megan Fowler, MPA
Planning, Zoning & Engineering Director County Planner/Zaning Administrator
Randy Weathersby Corrie Wheeler Amanda Nava
GIS Manager GIS Technician Oifice Manager/Planning Assistant
MEMORANDUM

To: Christi Dockery and Mike Sistrunk; Bob Alexander and Mayor Pro Tem Richard Bush:
Cassandra Durham and Mayor Vincent Cutis

From: Rozanne Braswell {§

Date:  1/7/20

Re: 2020 CDBG Applicants & Amended Service Delivery Strategy

The Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) has imposed a new requirement with
respect to Service Delivery Strategies and 2020 CDBG applications. In order to receive a CDBG
Grant, the Service Delivery Strategy must identify GRANTS as a funding source for the service
for which the local government is applying for CDBG funding.

For example, if the county applies for a CDBG to make improvements in the water distribution
system. The SDS must identify GRANTS as a potential funding source for operation of water

utilities within the county jurisdiction. Typically, most local governments apply for either water,
sewer, or streets and drainage projects. The CDBG Consultant, Bob Roberson recommends

amending all three service strategies at this time.

The SDS must be immediately amended as outlined above, and the amended SDS must be
included in CDBG applications to be submitted April 1, 2020.

The Service Delivery Strategies for Water Treatment and Distribution, Wastewater Treatment and
Road and ROW Maintenance have been amended to add GRANTS as a funding source.

Please adopt the amended Strategies at your January meeting and forward to me, for submittal to
the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission and subsequently to DCA. This will ensure CDBG
eligibility for future applications.

Lee County, Georgia
102 Starksville Ave., N Leesburg, GA 31783
(229) 759-6000 Fax: (229) 759-6032
Web: www lee aa i




-
(8 Georgia

Communify Affairs

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY

Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements I

;' Instructions:
|

| Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use E LY the same sanvice listed on FORM 1. |
. Answer each guestion below, attaching additional pages as necassary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottam of the page) changes, this |
| should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs |

| COUNTY:LEE COUNTY ‘ Service:Wastewater Treatment

| 1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upen delivery arrangement for this service:

a) [ Service will be provided countywide (i.e including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider
| (If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.): i

b.) [ Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.): !

¢.) [ One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will net ba

provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the
service:

d.) [ One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated baundaries, and the county will provide the

service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the
service,):

e) Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of gach service provider, and
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.). Lee County,
Utility Authority, City of Leesburg, City of Smithville

| 2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service
identified?

(Clyes (if "Yes," you must attach additional documentation as described, below)
PINo
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e.,

overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.CGA 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated).

If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it.

Page 1 of 2 SO




SDS FORM 2, continued

3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (eg,

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact
fees, bonded indebtedness, efc.).

Local Govermment oF Aoy ——

2, .__wﬁumﬂﬂ;e@d_.,___m_;m

i 1 e m.’ i
| i Lee County Board of Commissioners : General Fung: Grants R J ;
, ~ City of Leesburg _ User Fees; Grants e i

City of Smithville User Fees. Grants
H_—_——.“ ‘ i

ey — |

this service:

_____Agresment Name ] Contracting Parties E_E”Et&@__m@:ggle{esﬁf
! Road and ROW maintenance ! Lee County, Cities of Leesburg & Smithville May 26, 1999 - Ongoing i
r"\‘K j

I
{ !

; Existing agreement will continye.
f |
| e ]
7. Person completing form: Rozanne Braswell
i Phone number: 229.759.6000 Date completed: 01/07/20
| !
f {
F
|

8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local government
| Projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? [ Yes [XINo

If nat, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s} below: '
CHRISTI DOCKERY OR MIKE SISTRUNK 229.759.6000 !
!

Page 2 of 2




Lee County, Georgia
Wastewater Treatment Service Areas

Gl
g2
= Y
X
¢ 9. >

%

Wastewater Treatment Service Areas

Provider
[ Lee County Utitity Authority
B city of Leesburg

L] City of Smithville

4
LEE COUNTY TR e Wil eg




‘ =
(@ Geovgia ...

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY

Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements

| Instructions:
| : |
| Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed an FORM 1. #
| Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this

| should be reported to the Department of Community Aifairs,

i
! COUNTY:LEE COUNTY | Service:Water Treatment and Distribution

|
|

S CH

i
{
i

1. Check ane box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service:

| a) [ Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including al} cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider
{If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):

b.) [ Service will be pravided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is
checked, identify the gaovernment, authority or organization providing the service.):

¢.) [ One or mare cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be

provided in unincorporated areas. {If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the ;
service: : |

d.} [] One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the

service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the
service.):

2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service
identified?

[(IYes (if "Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)
[OnNo

If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (e,
. averlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that
. overlapping service areas or competition cannot be gliminated).

if these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an impiementation schedule listing each step or action that
- will be taken to eliminate them. the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it,

l Page 1 of 2 ol




SDS FORM 2, continued

3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded {e.g.,
enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact
fess, bonded indebtedness, elc.).

Funding Method

| Lee County Uti | General Fung transfer in, Debt

- City of Leesburg | User Fees; Grants '
P LAl Em e e I P A ——— =
1 | City of Smithville oo UserFees: Grants e #

5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for |
this service: |

| Agreamentl E@;:l_i.:::th@mg_ﬁ_ %*wmﬁ_’
[ Water Treatment and | Lee County Utility Authority, Cities of Leesburg & { May 26, 1999 - Ongoing \I

Existing agreement will continue.

e

7. Person completing form: Rozanne Braswell
Phane number: 229.759.6000 Date completed: 01 107720

8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local government
Projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? [JYes [XINo

If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below:
CHRISTI DOCKERY OR MIKE SISTRUNK 229.759.6000

Page 2 of 2




Lee County, Georgia

Water Treatment and Distribution Areas

%,
mﬂ_&!ﬂlrmr
(3 Alpor ke
o =
a
73
2
=
O

LEE COUNTY

o
F ] tz 7 A €11, o l‘llmli c ?Dunt Lina E{d-)llﬂjll
= g‘r Q? o Q_.’) SI“S'@,, QU ?
£ &\9
b =] §
L o =1
c 3 ays Rd
) ‘QO“ Prf“afe
o) Baus
x
i’:“q -
h=]
£ 4
%, g J p
‘S &Q* B_Eli 5
2 e o 3 A,
3 g ? s 3
z = &, e
Pinewood R} £ g =z oS
& 2 F 7
1 % s
| g
3 &
‘%’8 e flouid 30 £ =
@
(9 Jew Df = Q"b {\l
) g 3
4 z B2 & 1‘
%3 H 2
e AB rAd
ba‘ R
(-9
Water Service Areas
Provider
[
| Lee County Utility Authority
0 city of Leesburg
N
[ city of Smithville A
[ 3 1 2 4
RN —— W o




- \' ‘ 3
s (8 Geovgia ... .
2

T Community Affairs

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY

FORM 2: summary of Service Delivery Arrangements

! Instructions:

| Make copies of this form and complete one for sach servics listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Usa I i M1

 Answer each question below. attaching additional pages as necessary If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs.

COUNTY:LEE COUNTY | Bervice:Road and ROW maintenance
|

1
S —— “ i

~e —

1. Check gne box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this servige:

a.) [ Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):

b.) [ Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):

c.) [] One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be

provided in unincorporated areas. (if this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the .
service: '

d.) One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the
service ). Lee County Board of Commissioners, City of Leesburg, City of Smithville

e.) [[] Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):

2. In developing this strategy, wers overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service
identifiad?

KYes (if“Yes," you must attach additional documentation as described, below)
CNo
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i..,

overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that
| overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated).

If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an impiementation schedule listing each step or acticn that
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it.

Page 1 of 2




SDS FORM 2, continued

3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g,
enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact
fees, bonded indebtedness‘ etc.).

5 LQG&[ Govarnment orAutﬁOfft[__,! : I IS “f‘gﬂglﬁwemad : = o - —J |
i rity . General Fund transfer in, Debt, and User Fees; Grants

_Lee County Utility Autho ;
. —
: L City of Leesburg - User Fees: Grants 4

- City of Smithville M . User Fees: Grants o B _ !
4' —

_Agreement Name T __Contracting Parfies
Biee 0 S e
Water Treatment and | Lee County Utility

Distribution | Smithville

| Effective and £nding Dates _ |

May 26, 1999 - Ongoing |
B

1
i
J

6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this servica (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local
| acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect?

Existing agreement will continue.

TSRS, - - ST = S __.‘\

7. Person completing form: Rozanne Braswell
Phone number- 229.759.6000 Date completed: 01/07/20

8. Is this the berson who should be Contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether Proposed local government
| Projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? [JYes XINo
; If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below:
i CHRISTI DOCKERY OR MIKE SISTRUNK 229.759.6000
!
|

T e s

Page 2 of 2




Service Delivery Strategy

Lee County
Road and ROW Maintenanca

Explanation for Cantinuing the Arran gement
M i A e """—‘__-*"_-——.m—__

Servige Delivery Strategy lssue #s: Overlapping service areas are evident in thrae
services - law enforcement {Sheriff), road and ROW maintenanca, and water treatment
and distribution.

Service Dalivery Strategy Solution #5: Lee County Board of Commissioners provides
rozd and ROW maintenance for all roads within the unincorporated areas of the county.
The two cities (Leesburg and Smithville) aiso provide road and ROW maintenance for all
tha raads within thair carporate lIimits, Howevsr, the county nise maintaing <ity roads on
an as-needed basis becausa the cilies da not have the aquiprent the county hag,
Tharefare, the overlapping service area has averriding benedits.

1




( ﬁ*&@m’gia' b
Community Affairs

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY

FORM 4: certifications

Instructions:

not required to sign this form, but are encouraged to do so.

. be signed by an authorized representative of the following governments: 1 ) the county; 2) the city serving as the county
seat; 3) all cities having a 2010 population of over 9,000 residing within the county; and 4) no less than 50% of all other cities with a 2010 population of
between 500 and 9,000 residing within the county. Cities with a 2010 population below 500 and local authorities providing services under the strategy are

COUNTY: LEE COUNTY

We, the undersigned authorized representatives of the jurisdictions listed below, certify that:

provide an accurate depiction of our agreed upon strategy (0.C.G.A 36-70-21)

]

effective, and responsive manner (O.C.G.A. 36-70-24 (1;

(20); and

owners who receive such service (O.C.G.A. 36-70-24 (3)).

1. We have executed agreements for implementation of our service delivery strategy and the attached forms
2. Our service delivery strategy promotes the delivery of local government services in the maost efficient,
3. Our service delivery strategy provides that water or sewer fees charged to customers located outside the

geographic boundaries of a service provider are reasonable and are not arbitrarily higher than the fees
charged to customers located within the geographic boundaries of the service provider (0.C.G.

A. 36-70-24

4. Our service delivery strategy ensures that the cost of any services the county government provides (including
those jointly funded by the county and one or more municipalities) primarily for the benefit of the

JURISDICTION TITLE NAME [ SIGNATURE DATE
LEE COUNTY Commission
Chairman
CITY OF LEESBURG
Mayor
CITY OF SMITHVILLE
Mayor




CONSULTING AGREEMENT

Effective the 1* day of January, 2020, by and between ULTRA STRATEGIES,
LLC, a Georgia limited liability company (hereinafter “Consultant™) and the City of Leesburg, Ga.
(hereinafter “Company™) agree as follows:

1. Services; Payment; No Violation of Rights or Obligations. Consultant agrees to undertake

and complete the Services (as defined in Exhibit A) in accordance with and on the schedule
specified in Exhibit A. As consideration for performance of Services as outlined in Exhibit A,
Company will pay Consultant in accordance with the payment schedule set forth on Exhibit A.
Unless otherwise specifically agreed upon by the parties in writing, all activity relating to Services
will be performed by and only by Consultant or its designee. Consultant and Company agree that
neither will interfere with, take action or by inaction violate, any agreement between Consultant
or Company and any third party. Consultant will not, except as expressly authorized by Company
in writing or by conduct, use or disclose at any time Consultant’s own or any third party’s
confidential information or intellectual property in connection with the Services or otherwise for
or on behalf of Company.

2. Ownership Rights: Proprietary Information; Publicity.

a. The parties agree that Consultant shall own all right, title and interest (including all
intellectual property rights of any sort throughout the world) relating to any and all inventions,
works of authorship, designs, know-how, ideas and information made or conceived or reduced to
practice, in whole or in part, by or for or on behalf of Consultant during the term of this Agreement
except to the extent that it relates expressly to any Proprietary Information (as defined below)

b. Consultant agrees that all Inventions and all other business, technical and financial
information (including, without limitation, the identity of and information relating to customers or
employees) developed, learned or obtained by or on behalf of Consultant during the period that
Consultant is to be providing the Services that relate to Company or the business or demonstrably
anticipated business of Company or in connection with the Services or that are received by or for
Company in confidence, constitute “Proprietary Information.” Consultant shall hold in confidence
and not disclose or, except in performing the Services, use any Proprietary Information. However,
Consultant shall not be obligated under this paragraph with respect to information Consultant can
document is or becomes readily publicly available without restriction through no fault of
Consultant. Consultant may also keep its personal copies of its compensation records and this
Agreement.

& As additional protection for Proprietary Information, Consultant agrees that during
the term of this Agreement, Consultant will not engage in any activity that is in any way
competitive with the business or demonstrably anticipated business of Company, and Consultant
will not assist any other person or organization in competing or in preparing to compete with any
business or demonstrably anticipated business of Company.

3. Warranties and Other Obligations. Consultant represents, warrants and covenants that:
(i) the Services will be performed in a professional and workmanlike manner and that none of such




Services nor any part of this Agreement is or will be inconsistent with any obligation Consultant
may have to others; (ii) all work under this Agreement shall be Consultant’s original work and
none of the Services or Inventions nor any development, use, production, distribution or
exploitation thereof will infringe, misappropriate or violate any intellectual property or other right
of any person or entity (including, without limitation, Consultant); (iii) Consultant has the full right
to allow it to provide Company with the assignments and rights provided for herein (and has
written enforceable agreements with all persons necessary to give it the rights to do the foregoing
and otherwise fully perform this Agreement); (iv) Consultant shall comply with all applicable
laws, and Company rules of which Consultant is informed, in the course of performing the
Services; and (v) if Consultant’s work requires a license, Consultant has obtained that license and
the license is in full force and effect.

4. Relationship of the Parties; Independent Contractor; No Emplovee Benefits.
Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, Consultant is an independent contractor and is not an
employee, agent, partner or joint venture of Company and shall not bind nor attempt to bind
Company to any contract nor shall Company bind nor attempt to bind Consultant to any contract.
Consultant shall accept any directions issued by Company pertaining to the goals to be attained
and the results to be achieved by Consultant, but Consultant shall be solely responsible for the
manner and hours in which the Services are performed under this Agreement. Consultant shall
not be eligible to participate in any of Company’s employee benefit plans, fringe benefit programs,
group insurance arrangements or similar programs. Consultant will report as self-employment
income all compensation received by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement. Company shall not
provide workers’ compensation, disability insurance, Social Security or unemployment
compensation coverage or any other statutory benefit to Consultant. Consultant shall comply at
Consultant’s expense with all applicable provisions of workers’ compensation laws,
unemployment compensation laws, federal Social Security law, the Fair Labor Standards Act,
federal, state and local income tax laws, and all other applicable federal, state and local laws,
regulations and codes relating to terms and conditions of employment required to be fulfilled by
employers or independent contractors. Consultant will ensure that its employees, contractors and
others involved in the Services, if any, are bound in writing to the foregoing, and to all of
Consultant’s obligations under any provision of this Agreement, for Company’s benefit and
Consultant will be responsible for any noncompliance by them. Consultant agrees to indemnify
Company from any and all claims, damages, liability, settlement, attorneys’ fees and expenses, as
incurred, on account of the foregoing.

3. Assignment. This Agreement and the services contemplated hereunder are personal to
Consultant and Company, and neither Consultant nor Company shall have the right or ability to
assign, transfer or subcontract any rights or obligations under this Agreement without the written
consent of the other. Any attempt to do so shall be void.

6. Notice. All notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed given
when personally delivered, or three days after being sent by prepaid certified or registered U.S.
mail to the address of the party to be noticed as set forth herein or to such other address as such
party last provided to the other by written notice.




7. Miscellaneous. The failure of either party to enforce its rights under this Agreement at any
time for any period shall not be construed as a waiver of such rights. No changes or modifications
or waivers to this Agreement will be effective unless in writing and signed by both parties. In the
event that any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be illegal or unenforceable, that
provision will be limited or eliminated to the minimum extent necessary so that this Agreement
shall otherwise remain in full force and effect and enforceable. This Agreement shall be governed
by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia without regard to the conflicts
of laws provisions thereof. The parties agree that jurisdiction and venue of any dispute shall be
with the Superior Court of Glynn County, Georgia to the full extent allowed by law. In any action
or proceeding to enforce rights under this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to
recover costs and attorneys’ fees. Headings herein are for convenience of reference only and shall
in no way affect interpretation of the Agreement.

Ultra Strategies, LL.C

Name: Eugene Edward Rynders, Jr.
Title: Managing Member

By:
Name:
Title:
EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Services include any activity or services Consultant undertakes from time to time at the request
of (or under the direction of) the Company or otherwise in connection with the Company’s
business and specifically include the following:

Advising and consulting the Company on matters of process and procedures relating to
governmental and political affairs. The term of this contract is limited to 1 year.




COMPENSATION

As the sole consideration due to Consultant for the Services, for so long as Consultant provides
continuous Services, Consultant will be entitled to compensation and payment of costs and
expenses as follows:

$12,000 per year, to be allocated by the City of Leesburg. The total $12,000 may be paid as soon
a possible by the company, or in equal monthly installments of $1,000.00 per month.

B r—



